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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Bureau of Adult Education

21 South Fruit Street, Suite 20
Concord, NH 03301
TEL. (603) 271-6699
FAX (603)271-3454

June 7, 2023

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
And the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Education, Division of Learner Support, Bureau of Adult Education to enter into
a contract with Second Start (VC# 177224) of Concord, New Hampshire in an amount not to exceed
S2,442.202.46 to provide a statewide adult education professional development system, including state
leadership activities as defined in Section 223 of the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act of 2014,
effective upon Governor and Council approval through June 30, 2028. 10% Federal Funds, 90% General
Funds

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the accounts titled Adult Education-Federal and
Adult Education-State FY24-FY28 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future
operating budget, with the ability to adjust encumbrances between Fiscal Years within the price limitation
through the Budget Office, without further Governor and Council approval, if needed and justified.

Account #s FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28

06-56-56-562010-40370000-072-

500575 Grants Federal

$46,000.00 $47,380.00 $48,801.40 $50,265.44 $51,773.40

06-56-56-562010-40390000-601 -

500931 State Fund Match

$414,000.00 $426,420.00 $439,212.61 $452,388.97 $465,960.64

Total $460,000.00 $473,800.00 $488,014.01 $502,654.41 $517,734.04

EXPLANATION

The Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act of 2014, Title II Adult Education and Family Literacy Act
Section 223 requires the Department of Education, Bureau of Adult Education to provide State Leadership
activities including the operation of a high-quality professional development program to improve the
instruction provided through adult education and literacy activities by local adult education centers.
Additionally, required State Leadership activities include the provision of technical assistance to eligible
providers including the development and dissemination of instructional and programmatic practices; the role of

TDD Access: Relay NH 711
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER- EQUAL EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
And The Honorable Council

Page 2

eligible providers as a one-stop partner to provide access to employment, education, and training services; and
training on the use of technology to improve program system efficiencies.

A Request for Proposals was issued on April 11, 2023 and posted on the NH Departments of Education and
Administrative Services websites and distributed through the Department's communication system. One
proposal was received.

The Statewide Professional Development contractor is responsible for providing a comprehensive, high-quality
professional development system that is flexible in the delivery of its services to meet the needs ofNH adult
educators including those employed in programs operating under the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity
Act of 2014 and state laws and education rules applicable to the establishment of an adult high school program
and high school equivalency program. Services must provide materials and resources based on the current,
rigorous adult education research, be aligned to the NH State Workforce Plan and its goals, and be designed to
build capacity vyhile improving teacher effectiveness across adult education programs.

There are more than four hundred and fifty adult educators.currently employed by Bureau funded adult
education programs and an additional four hundred volunteer tutors working with adult learners across the
State. The majority of adult educators are employed part time and have worked in adult education for less than
three years. While many adult educators have been trained in K-12 pedagogy, they need professional
development, training and technical assistance specifically designed for teaching adult learners.

Second Start has been providing professional development services to the adult education field for more than
three decades. In the last three years, they have transitioned the professional development system into a
flexible fonnat offering in-person, online synchronous and asynchronous leaming opportunities for educators.
They bring a solid foundation in adult leaming theory combined with specialized training from national adult
education leadership activities at the US Department of Education, Office of Adult, Career and Technical
Education.

Respectfully submitted.

0^
Frank Edelblut

Commissioner of Education
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Attachment A

Bid Summary Scoring Sheet
Statewide Adult Education Professional Development

Name of bidders

Only one proposal was received, and It met the minimum standards required
in the RFP.

Proposed
Price

Second Start ***$3,707,977.97

Proposed price may be different from final negotiated price.

Reviewers Title

Kaitlyn S Laconia Adult Education Program Director

Laura C Above the Notch Community School Intake & Assessment Specialist
Claudia D Salem Continuing Education Program Director

The minimum standards for consideration were:

•  Determined as an eligible provider by having demonstrated effectiveness In providing
adult education professional development services

•  Minimum score of 250 out of 500 points

Name of Bidders - Average Scores listed highest to lowest Average Score

Second Start 394.3

Proposal Criteria In the RFP Weight of Criteria

Organizational Capacity 75

Alignment to Core WlOA Partners 50

Instructional Improvement 100

Technical Assistance 75

Monitoring. Evaluation and Improvement 50

Capacity Building 50

Facilitation 75

Budget and Budget Narrative 25

Total Potential Points 500

Review Process

There were two steps in the review process:

1. A committee of three individuals preliminarily reviewed the proposal received using a rubric to
evaluate the requirements of the RFP.

2. An evaluation meeting was held on May 19, 2023 to complete final scoring.



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 2/23/2023)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon siJjaussion to Governor and
Executive Council for appro\*al. Any infomiation that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in uriting prior to signing tlie contract.

AGREEMENT

Tlie State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby munially agree as follows;

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name

Department of Education, Bureau of Adult Education
1.2 State Agency Address

21 South Emit Street, Suite 20
Concord, NH 03301

1.3 Contractor Name

Second Start
1.4 Contractor Address

17 Knight Street
Concord, NH 03301

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603-228-1341 .

1.6 Account Unit and Class

See Exhibit C

1.7 Completion Date

6/30/2028

1.8 Price Limitation

$2,442,202.46

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency

Sarali Wheeler

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

603-271-6701

1.11 Contractor Signanne

Date:

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

William Mealey
Executive Director

1.13 State Agency Signature ^

Date: 06/19/2023

1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

Frank Edelblut, Commissioner of Education

1.15 Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Di\ision of Personnel (if applicable)

By: Director. On:

1.16 Approval by tlie Attorney General (Fonn, Substance and Execution) (ifapplicable)

On; 06/19/2023

1.17 Appro\'al the Governor and Executive Council (ifapplicable)

G&C Item number: G&C Meeting Date:
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New

Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block I.I
(•'State'"), engages contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor")
to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of
goods, or both, identified and more particularly described in the
attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
E.xecuiive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive Council
approve this Agreement, unless no such approval is required, in
which case the Agreement shall become effective on the date the

Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block 1.13
("Effective Date").
3.2 I f the Contractor commences the Services prior to the Effective
Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to the
Effective Date shall be perfomted at the sole risk of the Contractor,
and in the event that this Agreement does not become effective, the
State shall have no liabilit)' to the Contractor, including without
limitation, any obligation to pay the Contractor for any costs
incurred or Services performed.
3.3 Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary,
all obligations of the State hereunder, including, without limitation,
the continuance of payments hereunder, are contingent upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds. In no event shall
the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of such
available appropriated funds. In the event of a reduction or
termination of appropriated funds by any state or federal legislative
or executive action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies
the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBITS, in whole or in part,
the State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination. The
State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds
in that Account are reduced or unavailable,

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/ PAYMENT.
5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder. exceed the Price Limitation set fonh in block 1.8. The
payment by the State of the contract price shall be the only and the
complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all expenses, of
whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the performance

hereof, and shall be the only and the complete compensation to the
Contractor for the Services.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or pennitted by N.H. RS.A 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 The State's liability under this Agreement shall be limited to
monetar)' damages not to exceed the total fees paid. The Contractor
agrees that it has an adequate remedy at law for any breach of this
Agreement by the Stale and hereby waives any right to specific
perfonnance or other equitable remedies against the State.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS AND

REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws and the Governor's order on Respect
and Civility in the Workplace. Executive order 2020-01. In
addition, if this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all federal
executive orders, rules, regulations and statutes, and with any rules,
regulations and guidelines as the State or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor shall also comply
with all applicable intellectual property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for emplovment
because of age. sex. sexual orientation, race, color, marital status,
physical or mental disability, religious creed, national origin,
gender identity, or gender expression, and will take affirmative
action to prevent such discrimination, unless exempt by state or
federal law. The Contractor shall ensure any subcontractors
comply with these nondiscrimination requirements.
6.3 No payments or transfers of value by Contractor or its
representatives in connection with this Agreement have or shall be
made which have the purpose or effect of public or commercial
bribery, or acceptance of or acquiescence in extortion, kickbacks,
or other unlawful or improper means of obtaining business.
6.4. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with this Agreement and
all rules, regulations and orders pertaining to the covenants, terms
and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that all
personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to perform the
Services, and shall be properly licensed and otherwise authorized
to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9. of any
successor, shall be the State's point of contact pertaining to this
.Agreement.
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder ("Event
of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of a
greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) calendar days
from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely
cured, terminate this Agreement, effective uvo (2) calendar days
after giving the Contractor notice of termination:

8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
.Agreement and ordering that the portion ofthe contract price which
would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the period from
the date of such notice until such time as the State detemiines that

the Contractor has cured the Event of Default shall never be paid
to the Contractor;

8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may owe
to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default: and/or

8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the .Agreement
and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or in
part, by thirty (30) calendar days written notice to the Contractor
that the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for any
reason other than the completion of the Ser\'ices, the Contractor
shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the Contracting Officer,
not later than fifteen (15) calendar days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in detail
all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to and
including the date of termination. In addition, at the State's
discretion, the Contractor shall, within fifteen (15) calendar days
of notice of early termination, develop and submit to the State a
transition plan for Services under the Agreement.

10. PROPERTY OWNERSHIP/DISCLOSURE.

10.1 As used in this .Agreement, the word "Property" shall mean
all data, information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of. or acquired or developed by reason of. this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports, files,
formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether finished or
unfinished.

10.2 All data and any Property which has been received from the
State, or purchased with funds provided for that purpose under this
Agreement, shall be the property ofthe State, and shall be returned
to the State upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement
for any reason.

10.3 Disclosure of data, information and other records shall be
governed by N.H. RSA chapter 91-A and/or other applicable law.
Disclosure requires prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in ail respects an
independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an employee of
the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of itsofTtcers, employees,
agents or members shall have authority to bind the State or receive
any benefits, workers' compensation or other emoluments
provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSICNMENT/DELECATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.1 Contractor shall provide the State written notice at least fifteen
(15) calendar days before any proposed assignment, delegation, or
other transfer of any interest in this Agreement. No such
assignment, delegation, or other transfer shall be effective without
the written consent of the State.

12.2 For purposes of paragraph 12, a Change of Control shall
constitute assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in

which a third part)', together with its affiliates, becomes the direct
or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the voting
shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting power of the
Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of
the Contractor.

12.3 None of the Sers'ices shall be subcontracted by the Contractor
without prior written notice and consent of the State.
12.4 The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and
assignment agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions
contained in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it
is not a party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall indemnify,
defend, and hold harmless the State, its officers, and employees
from and against all actions, claims, damages, demands,
judgments, fines, liabilities, losses, and other expenses, including,
without limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees, arising out of or
relating to this Agreement directly or indirectly arising from death,
personal injury, property damage, intellectual property
infringement, or other claims asserted against the State, its officers,
or emplo>ees caused by the acts or omissions of negligence,
reckless or willful misconduct, or fraud by the Contractor, its
employees, agents, or subcontractors. The State shall not be liable
for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under this
paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the State's

sovereign immunity, which immunity is hereby reserved to the.
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the termination
of this Agreement.
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14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor
or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims of
bodily injur>', death or property' damage, in amounts of not less than
51,000,000 per occurrence and 52,000,000 aggregate or excess;
and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all Properly
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the Property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be on
policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State of
New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and issued
by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or any successor, a certiflcate(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement. At the
request of the Contracting OfTicer, or any successor, the Contractor
shall provide certiflcate(s) of insurance for all renewal(s) of
insurance required under this Agreement. The certiflcate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or
discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the parties
hereto and only after approval of such amendment, waiver or
discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of the State of
New Hampshire unless no such approval is required under the
circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

19. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM.

19.1 This Agreement shall be governed, interpreted and construed
in accordance with the laws of the State of New Hampshire except
where the Federal supremacy clause requires otherwise. The
wording used in this Agreement is the wording chosen by the
parlies to express their mutual intent, and no rule of construction
shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
19.2 Any actions arising out of this Agreement, including the
breach or alleged breach thereof, may not be submitted to binding
arbitration, but must, instead, be brought and maintained in the
Merrimack County Superior Court of New Hampshire which shall
have exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

20. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict between

the terms of this P-37 form {as modified in EXHIBIT A) and any
other portion of this Agreement including any attachments thereto,
the terms of the P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies and
warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt from,
the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A fft'orkers'
C onipcnsalion ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements of
N.H. RSA chapter 28I-,A, Contractor shall maintain, and require
any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain, payment of
Workers' Compensation in connection with activities which the
person proposes to undertake pursuant to this Agreement. The
Contractor shall furnish the Contracting OfTicer identified in block
1.9. or any successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A and any applicable
renewals) thereof, which shall be attached and are incorporated
herein by reference. The State shall not be responsible for payment
of any Workers' Compensation premiums or for any other claim or
benefit for Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of
Contractor, which might arise under applicable State of New
Hampshire Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Ser\'ices under this Agreement.

21. THIRD PARTIES. This .Agreement is being entered into for
the sole benefit of the parties hereto, and nothing herein, express or
implied, is intended to or will confer any legal or equitable right,
benefit, or remedy of any nature upon any other person.

22. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the .Agreement are for
reference purposes only, and the words contained therein shall in
no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

23. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

24. FURTHER ASSURANCES. The Contractor, along with its
agents and affiliates, shall, at its own cost and expense, execute any
additional documents and take such further actions as may be
reasonably required to carry out the provisions of this Agreement
and give effect to the transactions contemplated hereby.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. A State's failure to enforce its rights
with respect to any single or continuing breach of this .Agreement
shall not act as a waiver of the right of the State to later enforce any
such rights or to enforce any other or any subsequent breach.

25. SEVERABILITV. In the event any of the provisions of this
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law. the remaining provisions of
this .Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other part>' shall
be deemed to haye been duly delivered or given at the lime of
mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States Post
Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in blocks 1.2
and 1.4, herein.

26. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each, of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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EXHIBIT A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. The Contractor must comply with the following provisions:

•  Exhibit D: Contractor Obligations
•  Exhibit E: Federal Debarment and Suspension

•  Exhibit F: Anti-Lobbying
•  Exhibit G: Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract, Copy Rights and Confidentiality
•  Exhibit H: Compliance with the provisions of the US Code of Federal Regulations 34

CFR 364 and the following US Circular if applicable: Office of Management and Budget
(OEM) Circular A-110 "Uniform Administrative Non-Profit Organizations"

•  Exhibit I: Attestation for the US Department of Education General Education Provisions
Act (GEPA)

•  Exhibit J: Buy American Statement in accordance with Section 502 of the Workforce
Innovation and Opportunity Act of 2014

2. The Contractor must sign annual General Assurances from the NH Department of Education,
Bureau of Federal Compliance and the Program Assurances included in Exhibit B: Scope of
Services.

3. Federal Certification 2 CFR 200.415

Required certifications include: (a) To assure that expenditures are proper and in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the Federal award and approved project
budgets, the annual and final .fiscal reports or vouchers requesting payment under the
agreements must include a certification, signed by an official who is authorized to legally
bind the non-Federal entity, which reads as follows:

By signing this report, I certify to the best of my knowledge and belief that the report is
true, complete, and accurate, and the expenditures, disbursements and cash receipts
are for the purposes and objectives set forth in the terms and conditions of the Federal
award. I am aware that any false, fictitious, or fraudulent information, or the omission of
any material fact, may subject me to criminal, civil or administrative penalties for fraud,
false statements, false claims or otherwise. {U.S. Code Title 18, Section 1001 and Title
31. Sections 3729-3730 and 3801-3812).

Page 1 of 13 Contractor Initials wpm
Date Inn 8,2023



EXHIBIT B

SCOPE OF SERVICES

The vision for the statevyide professional development system is a comprehensive, high-quality
professional development system that is flexible in the delivery of its services to meet the needs
of NH educators that uses materials and resources based on the most current research; aligns
with the NH Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WlOA) Combined State Plan and its
goals; and, is designed to build capacity while improving teacher effectiveness across adult
education programs.

Second Start in Concord, NH will provide the following services;

State Leadership Activities

1. Alignment
The Contractor shall align activities with the other core WlOA partners to meet the mission and
goals of the NH State Workforce plan including, but not limited to:
•  Representing adult education on the interagency Professional Development Team
•  Coordinating services and collaboration with other core WlOA partners in support of

alignment and implementation of adult education services with the strategies identified in
the NH State Workforce Plan such as supporting and strengthening the talent
development system; developing.curricula or models for Integrated Education and
Training based on sector industries; promoting adult education as an entry-point to
career pathways; offering trainingsAvorkshops on the topics of career awareness and
exploration, talent attraction and retention, work-based learning, and soft skills
development; consistent messaging; employability skills training; cross-agency training
and identification of best practices across programs.

•  Signing onto the NH Work Memorandum of Understanding and contributing the required
adult education portion of the infrastructure fees.

2. Instruction Improvement
The Contractor shall provide high-quality professional development activities that address
activities offered at local adult education centers: instruction related to the specific needs of
adult learners; instruction provided by volunteers; and dissemination of information about
models and promising practices related to such programs including, but not limited to:
•  Assistance with the integration of the essential components of reading, including

STudent Achievement in Reading certification, promoting engagement with community
partners such as the NH Humanities

•  Provide a variety of activities such as Teaching the Skills that Matter, Advanced
Integrated Education and Training, Curriculum Review Training and Digital Resilience In
the American Workforce

•  Provide support for access to professional development opportunities and the
dissemination of models and promising practices related to improving instruction through
a variety of national and regional organizations such as Coalition on Adult Basic
Education. Literacy Information Network Communication System, ProLiteracy, New
England Literacy Resource Center and Adult Numeracy Network

•  Provide trainings and workshops on topics such as adult learner persistence, self-
directed learning, English language learners and how to work with individuals who have
low-literacy skills, barriers to employment, disabilities, and may be low-income. This
includes new hire training for adult education Instructors that Incorporates adult
education teacher competencies and mentoring services.
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•  Facilitate the annual adult education conference with vendors, core WlOA Partners,
community organizations and adult education practitioners with workshops on improving
instruction.

•  Increase access to rigorous, high-quality content intended to improve Instruction through
flexible scheduling

•  Provide training for volunteer coordinators to address the improvement of instruction
provided by volunteers, including supporting and guiding volunteer coordinators with
recruiting and training volunteer tutors to provide services for adult learners unable to
attend structured classes. Training shall address orientation and training for tutors, adult
learner persistence and tutoring in the content areas of reading, writing, math, English
language acquisition skills, high school equivalency preparation, workforce preparation
skills, self-directed learning and meeting the needs of adult learners.

•  Disseminate information on models and promising practices in adult education
•  Encourage the development and dissemination of curricula through participation in

federal initiatives, development of Canvas courses such as the Curriculum Review
project, earn and learn grants for instructions to develop and share curricula and the
annual conference

•  Promote workplace literacy activities including activities such as Teaching the Skills that
Matter, Career Navigator training. Employabillty Skills Training and participating in
national and regional training opportunities to share resources with NH practitioners

•  Assist instructors with alignment to the College & Career Readiness Standards for Adult
Education

•  Maintain a statewide disabilities committee to conduct informal inventories with adults
with learning disabilities and to assist with referrals to Vocational Rehabilitation services
as appropriate.

3. Technical Assistance

The Contractor shall provide technical assistance for the development and dissemination of
promising practices based on research; the role of eligible providers as a one-stop partner; and
assistance in the use of technology including, but not limited to:
•  Coordination and facilitation of training on various distance learning and assessment

software used by local adult education program.
•  Manage the Google Administration Console for authentication, user access,

development of asynchronous and synchronous professional development activities and
training for adult education instructors and students

•  Maintain membership in the Coalition on Adult Basic Education, and serve on the board
of the New England Literacy Resource Center

•  Support the development of integrated education and training programs and integrated
English literacy and civics education programs aligned with the goals of the NH State
Workforce Plan

•  Provide technical assistance for the use of technology activities such as Literacy, Adult
and Community Education System (LACES), Aztec, NorthStar Digital Literacy, Essential
Education, Burlington English, Canvas Learning Management system and NRS/Bureau
approved assessment in adult education.

•  Maintain an inventory of "lender" laptops to assist with remote assessment testing and
access to distance learning for instructors and students

•  Actively role model the integration of technology in instructional practices
•  Maintain members in the IDEAL consortium for the development and implementation of

distance education, including the support and use of instructional technology

4. Monitoring, Evaluation and Improving Teacher Quality

Page 3 of 13 Contractor Initials wpm

Date Jun 8.2023



The Contractor shall monitor and evaluation the quality of, and the improvement in, adult
education and literacy activities and the dissemination of models and proven or promising
practices including, but not limited to;

•  Monitoring and evaluation the quality of its programming.
•  Reporting services and impact on a bi-monthly basis to the Bureau of Adult Education

and the Commissioner of Education.

•  Developing and piloting strategies for improving teacher quality and retention.
•  Capacity Building

5. Capacity Building
The Contractor shall be responsible for increasing capacity within the NH adult education field.
This can include, but is not limited to:

•  Increasing the capacity to provide training, including national certification, by offering
opportunities for Train the Trainer models and encouraging participation in new and
promising professional development practices and pilot opportunities especially those
provided by national experts

•  Increasing accessibility to professional development opportunities through a variety of
delivery methods including asynchronous, synchronous, online, in-person opportunities
and through the mentor team

6. Facilitation

The Contractor shall be responsible for the facilitation of various groups/committees and serving
as a fiscal agent for the Bureau of Adult Education including, but not limited to:
•  Provide a Statewide Professional Development Director and appropriate support staff to

carry out the tasks of this contract

•  Provide a Statewide Disabilities Coordinator to provide consulting to all program staff on
working with students with disabilities and to act as a liaison between adult students and
state contracts high school equivalency testing services

•  Serve as a fiscal agency for the payment of stipends and mileage reimbursement for
presenters, training, eligible participants and subcontractors as well as costs associated
with professional development activities

•  Subcontract with other organization as needed to provide necessary expertise

Page 4 of 13 Contractor Initials
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EXHIBIT C

METHOD OF PAYMENT

Budget

FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 Total

Salaries $166,204.48 $171,190.61 $176,326.33 $181,616.12 $187,064.60 $882,402.14
Benefits $23,120.00 $23,813.60 $24,528.01 $25,263.85 $26,021.77 $122,747.23
Professional

Services
$123,964.00 $127,682.92 $131,513.41. $135,458.81 $139,522.57 $658,141.71

Purchased

Property
Services

$3,886.00 $4,002.58 $4,122.66 $4,246.34 $4,373.73 $20,631.31

Other

Purchased

Property
Service

$76,532.00 $78,827.96 $81,192.80 $83,628.58 $86,137.44 $406,318.78

Supplies $3,478.00 $3,582.34 $3,689.81 $3,800.50 $3,914.52 $18,465.17
Property $5,749.00 $5,921.47 $6,099.11 $6,282.08 $6,470.54 $30,522.20
Other

Objects
$15,250.00 $15,707.50 $16,178.73 $16,664.09 $17,164.01 $80,964.33

Indirect

Costs
$41,816.52 $43,071.02 $44,363.15 $45,694.04 $47,064.86 $222,009.59

Total $460,000.00 $473,800.00 $488,014.01 $502,654.41 $517,734.04 $2,442,202.46

Limitation on Price:

1. Annual funding amounts disbursed through this contract agreement shall be determined
based on actual WlOA federal awards for the delivery of adult education and literacy services
and state funds received, which may be less or more than estimated but may not exceed in
the aggregate the total maximum amount authorized via this contract agreement.

2. The NHED reserves the right to increase and/or decrease contract funds subject to
continued availability of Federal Funds, satisfactory performance of services, and approval
by the Governor and Executive Council.

3. The Contractor must have written authorization from the NHED prior to using contract funds
to purchase any property or equipment with a cost in excess of $250.00 and with a useful
life beyond one-year and shall maintain an inventory of property and equipment either
purchased or leased with funds made available through this contract.

4. The Bureau of Adult Education reserves the right to request ad hoc financial and/or
participant status reports in the event further information is needed to evaluate program
effectiveness as deemed reasonable and necessary by the NHED and/or the State of New
Hampshire.

5. The Contractor is solely responsible for paying to the NHED any disallowed costs
associated with the misappropriation of Federal Funds and/or costs expended on individuals
who were erroneously determined to be eligible for WlOA services. Disallowed costs may
not be paid with Federal Funds, regardless of the funding source.
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6. Line items in this budget may be adjusted, one to the other, of the indicated amount but in
no instance can the total budget exceed the price limitation. The Contractor must receive
Department of Education approval prior to transferring from one line to another.

Funding Source:

Funds are anticipated to be available in the accounts titled Adult Education-Federal and Adult
Education-State in FY24- FY28 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in
the future operating budget, with the ability to adjust encumbrances between fiscal years within
the price limitation through the Budget Office, without further Governor and Council approval, if
needed and justified.

FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28
06-56-56-

562010-

40370000-072-

500575

Grants Federal

$46,000.00 $47,380.00 $48,801.40 $50,265.44 $51,773.40

06-56-56-

562010-

40390000-601-

500931

State Fund

Match

$414,000.00 $426,420.00 $439,212.61 $452,388.97 $465,960.64

Method of Payment:

Payment will be made upon the submittal of monthly invoices that are received by the 10"^ day
of the following month submitted through the NHED Grants Management System. The final
invoice is due within 45 days of the end of the program year.
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EXHIBIT D

CONTRACTOR OBLIGATIONS

Contracts in excess of the simplified acquisition threshold (currently set at $250,000) must
address administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in instances where the contractors
violate or breach contract terms, and provide for such sanctions and penalties as appropriate.
Reference:

2 C.F.R. § 200.326 and 2 C.F.R. 200, Appendix II, required contract clauses.

The contractor acknowledges that 31 U.S.C. Chap. 38 (Administrative Remedies for False
Claims and Statements) applies to the contractor's actions pertaining to this contract.

The Contractor, certifies and affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of each statement of its
certification anddisclosure, if any. In addition, the Contractor understands and agrees that the
provisions of 31 U.S.C. § 3801 et seq., apply to this certification and disclosure, if any.

Breach

A breach of the contract clauses above may be grounds for termination of the contract, and
for debarmentas a contractor and subcontractor as provided in 29 C.F.R. § 5.12.

Fraud and False Statements

The Contractor understands that, if the project which Is the subject of this Contract is
financed in whole or in part by federal funds, that if the undersigned, the company that the
Contractor represents, or any employee or agent thereof, knowingly makes any false
statement, representation, report or claim as to the character, quality, quantity, or cost of
material used or to be used, or quantity or quality work performed or to be performed, or
makes any false statement or representation of a material fact in any statement, certificate, or
report, the Contractor and any company that the Contractor represents may be subject to
prosecution under the provision of 18 USC §1001 and §1020.

Environmental Protection

(This clause is applicable if this Contract exceeds $150,000. It applies to Federal-aid contracts
only.)
The Contractor is required to comply with all applicable standards, orders or requirements
issued under Section 306 of the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 1857 (h). Section 508 of the Clean
Water Act (33 U.S.C. 1368), Executive Order 11738, and Environmental Protection Agency
(EPA) regulations (40 CFR Part 15) which prohibit the use under non-exempt Federal
contracts, grants or loans of facilities included on the EPA List of Violating Facilities.
Violations shall be reported to the FHWA and to the U.S. EPA Assistant Administrator for
Enforcement.

Procurement of Recovered Materials

In accordance with Section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act (42 U.S.C. § 6962), State
agencies and agencies of a political subdivision of a state that are using appropriated Federal
funds for procurement must procure items designated in guidelines of the Environmental
Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 CFR 247 that contain the highest percentage of recovered
materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a satisfactorylevel of competition, where the
purchase price of the item exceeds $10,000 or the value of the quantity acquired in the
preceding fiscal year exceeded $10,000; must procure solid waste management services ina
manner that maximizes energy and resource recovery; and must have established an
affirmative procurement program for procurement of recovered materials identified in the EPA
guidelines.
Revised 6-25-21
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EXHIBIT E

FEDERAL DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION

a. By signature on this Contract, the Contractor certifies its compliance, and the
compliance of its Sut>-Contractors, present or future, by stating that any person
associated therewith in the capacity of owner, partner, director, officer, principal
investor, project director, manager, auditor, or any position of authority involving
federal funds;

1. Is not currently under suspension, debarment, voluntary exclusion, or
determination of ineligibility by any Federal Agency;

2. Does not have a proposed debarment pending;

3. Has not been suspended, debarred, voluntarily excluded or determined ineligible
by any Federal Agency within the past three (3) years; and

4. Has not been indicted, convicted, or had a civil judgment rendered against the firm
by a court of competent jurisdiction in any matter involving fraud or official
misconduct within the past three (3) years.

b. Where the Contractor or its Sub-Contractor is unable to certify to the statement in
Section a.1. above, the Contractor or its Sub-Contractor shall be declared ineligible to
enter into Contract or participate in the project.

c. Where the Contractor or Sub-Contractor is unable to certify to any of the statements
as listed in Sections a.2., a.3., or a.4., above, the Contractor or its Sub-Contractor
shall submit a written explanation to the NHED. The certification or explanation shall
be considered in connection with the NHED's determination whether to enter into
Contract.

d. The Contractor shall provide immediate written notice to the NHED if, at any time,
the Contractor or its Sub-Contractor, learn that its Debarment and Suspension
certification hasbecome erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

Revised 6-25-21
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EXHIBIT F

ANTI-LOBBYING

The Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions of Section 319 of Public Law 101-
121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 U.S.C. 1352,
and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, execute the following
Certification:

The Contractor certifies, by signing and submitting this contract, to the best of his/her
knowledge and belief,that:

a. No federal appropriated funds have been paid or shall be paid, by or on behalf of the
undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence any officer or
employee of any State or Federal Agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or
employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with
the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any federal grant, the making of
any federal loan, the entering into any cooperative agreement, and the extension,
continuation, renewal amendment, or modification of any Federal contract grant, loan,
or cooperative agreement.

b. If any funds other than federally appropriated funds have been paid or shall be paid to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any
Federal Agency, a Memberof Congress, and officer or employee of Congress, or an
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant,
loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit the
"Disclosure of Lobbying Activities" form in accordance with its instructions

https://www.asa.aov/forms-librarv/disclosure-lobbvinQ-activities

c. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a
prerequisite for making and entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352,
Title 31 and U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be
subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000and not more than $100,000 for each
such failure.

d. The Contractor also agrees, by signing this contract that it shall require that the
language of this certification be included in subcontracts with all Sub-Contractor(s)
and lower-tier Sub-Contractors which exceed $100,000 and that all such Sub-
Contractors and lower-tier Sub-Contractors shall certify and disclose accordingly.

e. The NHED shall keep the firm's certification on file as part of its original contract. The
Contractor shall keep individual certifications from all Sub-Contractors and lower-tier
Sub-Contractors on file. Certification shall be retained for three (3) years following
completion and acceptance of any givenproject.

Revised 6-25-21
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EXHIBIT G

RIGHTS TO INVENTIONS MADE UNDER A CONTRACT, COPY
RIGHTS AND CONFIDENTIALITY

Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement
Contracts or agreements for the performance of experimental, developmental, or research
work shall provide for the rights of the Federal Government and the recipient in any resulting
invention in accordance with 37 CFR part 401, "Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit
Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and
Cooperative Agreements." and any implementing regulations issued by the NHED.

Any discovery or invention that arises during the course of the contract shall be reported to the
NHED. The Contractor is required to disclose inventions promptly to the contracting officer
(within 2 months) after the inventor discloses It in writing to contractor personnel responsible
for patent matters. The awarding agencyshall determine how rights in the invention/discovery
shall be allocated consistent with "Government PatentPolicy" and Title 37 C.F.R. § 401.

Confidentiality
All Written and oral information and materials disclosed or provided by the NHED under this
agreement constitutes Confidential Information, regardless of whether such information was
provided before or after the date on this agreement or how it was provided.

The Contractor and representatives thereof, acknowledge that by making use of, acquiring or
adding to information about matters and data related to this agreement, which are
confidential to the NHED and its partners, must remain the exclusive property of the NHED.

Confidential information means all data and information related to the business and operation
of the NHED, including but not limited to all school and student data contained in NH Title XV,
Education, Chapters 186-200.

Confidential information includes but is not limited to, student and school district data,
revenue and cost information, the source code for computer software and hardware products
owned in part or in whole by the NHED, financial information, partner information(including the
identity of NHED partners). Contractor and supplier information, (including the identity of
NHED Contractors and suppliers), and any informationthat has been marked "confidential" or
"proprietary", or with the like designation. During the term of this contract the Contractor
agrees to abide by such rules as may be adopted from time to time by the NHED to maintain
the security of all confidential information. The Contractor further agrees that it will always
regard and preserve as confidential information/data received during the performance of this
contract. The Contractor will not use, copy, make notes, or use excerpts of any confidential
information, nor will it give, disclose, provide access to, or otherwise make available any
confidential information to any person not employed or contracted by the NHED or
subcontracted with the Contractor.

Ownership of Intellectual Property
The NHED shall retain ownership of all source data and other intellectual property of the
NHED providedto the Contractor in order to complete the services of this agreement. As well
-the NHED will retain copyright.ownership for any and all materials, patents and intellectual
property produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols,
guidelines, posters, or reports. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials for purposes
other than use for the terms under the contract without priorwritten approval from the NHED.

Revised 6-25-21

Page 10 of 13 Contractor Initials wpm
Date iiinR, 2023



EXHIBIT H

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF THE US CODE OF FEDERAL
REGULATIONS 34 CFR 364 and the FOLLOWING US CIRCULAR AS APPLICABLE

STATEMENT of ACCEI*TAiNCE ofTerms and Conditions
The orgonizaiion will acccpi ibc icnns and coadiiions of the Siatc of New
Hampshire's siandard Comraci Agreemeni/Gcneral Provisions (Form r-37).

Superiniendont ot Schools or

Chief Offtcer of Agency:

Local Director of Project
4^

Dofo Srjnetf;
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EXHIBIT I

GENERAL EDUCATION PROVISIONS ACT (GEPA) Sec. 427 Attestation -
WORKFORCE INVESTMENT ACT, TITLE II - ADULT EDUCATION AND FAMILY LITERACY

This attestation outlines the steps that Holy Cross Family Learning Center will ensure be taken
should the Adult Education application be funded.

The purpose of this requirement is to assist the United States Department of Education in
implementing its mission to ensure equal access to education and to promote educational
excellence.

If funded, the following steps will be taken to ensure equitable access to and equitable
participation in the project or activity to be conducted with federal adult education assistance by
addressing the access needs of students, teachers, and other program beneficiaries in order to'
overcome barriers to equitable participation, including barriers based on gender, race, color,
national origin, disability and age.

The Act highlights six types of barriers that can impede equitable access or participation:
gender, race, national origin, color, disability, or age. Based on local circumstances, determine
whether these or other barriers may prevent students, teachers, etc., from such access or
participation in the federally-funded project or activity. Please describe the steps to be taken to
comply with the GEPA requirements.

Individuals who are members of special populations will be provided with equal access to enrollment and
placement In educational programs available to individuals who are not members of special populations,
including specific courses, apprenticeship programs. Title I, and to the extent practicable, comprehensive
career guidance and counseling services, and shall not be discriminated against on the basis of their
state as members of special populations.

Descriptions of the steps that Second Start will employ to overcome these barriers are as follows:

1. ensuring accessibilities of facilities and programs for all students, teachers and other stakeholders, by
eliminating natural barriers for the enhancement of mobility and accessibility.
2. Staff development for teaching students in the least restrictive environment.
3. Providing academic adjustments and modification in curriculum and instruction
4. Equipment adaptation to ensure special populations can use equipment appropriately.

Project Director: {Name and Title) William P Mealey

Signature of Project Director: Date: Jun 8,2023
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EXHIBIT J

BUY AMERICAN ACT STATEMENT

PURCHASE OF AMERICAN-MADE EQUIPMENT AND PRODUCTS.— In the case of any
equipment or product that may be authorized to be purchased with financial assistance provided
using funds made available under title I or II or under the Wagner-Peyser Act (29 U.S.C. 49 et
seq.), it is the sense of Congress that entities receiving the assistance should, in expending the
assistance, purchase only American-made equipment and products.

This statement is provided in accordance with Section 502 of the Workforce Innovation and
Opportunities Act of 2014.
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State
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Certificate of Authority {Cnrporation, S'on-Profu Corporation)

Corporate Resolution

C Joe Shoemaker, hereby certify that I am duly elected President, Board of Directors of

Second Start. I hereby certify the following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board

of Directors/shareholders, duly called and held on May 22. 2023, at which a quorum of the

Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

VOTED: That Bill Mealev. Executive Director of Second Start is

duly authorized to enter into contracts or agreements on behalf of Second Start, with

the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is

authorized to execute any documents which may in his/her judgment be desirable or

necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

T hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force

and effect as of the date of the contract to which this certificate is attached. This authority

remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Corporate Resolution. I further certify

that it is understood that the Stale of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that

the person(s) listed above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have full

authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there arc any limits on the authority of any

listed individual to bind the corporation in contrdcts with the State of New Hampshire, all such

limitations arc expressly stated herein.

^  / r /// )
OATED: 5" ATTEST: ' / //iL/l T

(Ntime & Title)
i



ACORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIN^LY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER/S) AUTHORIZED
DCDOCCCkrTATlue AD Da/vni B a wb — ^ ~ i-w w

OATE (tlUAOrrrYY)

01/0312023

IMPORTANT. If the certificate holder b an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ies} must have AODITIONAL INSURED provblona or be endorsed
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain poricles may require an endorsement A statement on "
this certlflcale docs not confer rights to the certmcais holder In lieu of such ondorscmcntfs)

PROOUCER

E A S Insurance Servicss LLC

21 Meodowbrook Lane

P 0 Box 7425

NH 03247-7425

MAMet^ Eleanor Spbiazzola

riuc.^«.E.rtv (603)293-2791 | Ti? (603)293-7188
AD^SS: EleanorspinszzolaQesinsurancejiet

MSURERtSlAFEOROINC COVERAGE HAICI

INSURER A: AmTrust Financial Services, inc.
INSURES

Second Start

17 Knight Street

Concord NH 03301

INSURER B: Technology Insurance Co 42370

SrSURER C :

INSURER 0 ;

INSURER e ;

MSURER F:

wSr
JJS

THIS IS TO CERTIFYTHATTHE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POUClES OESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY RAID CLAIMS.

ioDCTlTrTYFE OF INSURANCE
■' • I

r FOUCY NUMBER
POUCYEXP

X
.'LMI'.VM

COMMERCIAL CeNCRAL LIAStUTY

ClAIUS-UAOE CXXUR

CEWL ACGREGATE UUIT APPUES PER;

POucvDSS Dlcx:
OTHER:

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

AMY AUTO

X

OWMSI
AUTOS OM.V
HIRED
AUTOS OM.Y

UMBRELLA UAB

EXC8S8UAB

OED m

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NOMOWNED
AUTOS OM.Y

OCCUR

CLNMSAAAOe

RETEKTIOM S 10.000
WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' UABILnY

AMY PROPRXnOa'PARTNER/EAECUTIVE
OFHCERAtEMBER EXCLUDED?
(MancMoty In NH)
II yM. aMCno* unov
OESCHimON OF OPERATIONS DMQi*

YIN

□

Cyb«r Liability

IWMIDO/VYVYI

12/31/2022

12/31/2022

TMM^QIYYYYl

12/31/2023

12/31/2022

12/31/2023

12/31/2023

UMITS

EACH OCCURRENCE
ToaronmmED—
PREMISES <Ea oajyTWwel
MEDe»fA«yori»o«'»On)

PERSONAL * ADVIKJURY

GF-meral aggregate

PRODUCTS • COMPIOPAGC

Employee Benefits
eOMtNKCO SINGLE UMfl
«E> iccManll
BOOIIYIWURY (Ptf pcnoi)

BODILY iiiiuRY (Par Kddent)

PROPERTY CMMACE
(Paracdoartl

Uninsured moiorist

EA^'oSrURR^E

12/31,"2022 12/31/2023

OBtCRIPmON Of OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS IVCWCLKS (ACORD tOl. AddlttonN Ramarlo 8ch«M«. may ba aCachM U m>r« ipaea ia
Certificate Holder it an sddtfonal insured (CGL) as required by siqned contrad with Ihe n»nod insured.

AOCRgGATE

PER
STxrUTE

OTH-
15_

E-L EACH ACCIOEKT

e.L DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE

EXlOSEASe - POLICY LIMIT
Aqgregste

1.000.000

1.000.000

20.000

1.000.000

3.000.000

3.000.000

i 1,000.000

% 1.000,000

S 1.000.000

2,000,000

2.000,000

S100.000

State of NH Commissioner of Ebrcation Division of Learner Sarvicas
Bureau of AduR Education

101 PteasaniSt

Concord NH 03301
1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERCO W
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZEO RCPRESeNTAriVE

e 1968-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights resarvwi.
ACORD 25(2016/03) Tha ACORD name and logo are registered martce of ACORD



J Issue Date 05/25/2023

Granite state Healthcare

and Human Service Trust

PO Box 4197
Concord, NH 03302-4197

This certificate Ls issued as a matter of information only
and confers no li^ts upon the certificate holder. This
certl/icate does not amend, extend or alter the coverage
afforded by the policies below.

CERTinCATE HOLDER
Certificate Of Insurance

Division of Learner Services

Bureau of Adult Education

101 Pleasant St

Concord, NH 03301

Companies Affording Coverage
COMPANY

LErn-R A

COMPANY

LETTER B

The Granite State Healthcare And Human

Services Self-Insured Croup Trugt

Midwest Employers Casualty Corp.

This policy is effective on 1/1/2023 AM, and will expire on 1/1/2024 ̂ 'oo AM. This policy will automatically be
renewed unless notified by either party by October ist of any fund year.

CO\TRAGES

This is to certify that the Workers' Compensation and Employer's Uability Insurance has been issued to the insured
named above for the policy period indicated, not withstanding any requirement, term or condition of any contract or
other document with respect to which this certificate may be issued or may pertain, the insurance afforded by the policies
described herein is subject to all the terms, exclusions and conditions of such policies.

Covering operations of the insured during the policy term. Per NH Law, additional
insured and waiver of subrogation are not allowed on workers' comp. COIs

D Eycluded Officer

MEMBER

Second Start

17 Knight Street
Concord, NH 03301

CANCELLATION

Should any of the above described policies be canceled
before the expiration date thereof, the issuing company will
endeavor to mail 30 days written notice to the certificate
holder named to the left, but failure to mail such notice shall

impose no obligation or liability of any kind upon the
company, its agents or representatives.

05/25/2023

Authorized Representative Date

j  T>*pe of
Insurance/Carrier Policy Number

Policy
Effective

Policy
Expiration

LIMITS

Workers" Comoensation

& Emolovcr's Liabililv

The Granite State Healthcare

And Human Services Self-

Insured Group Trust

1/1/2013 AM 1/1/2024 u:oo AM

W/C Statutory Limits

E.L. Each Accident

E.L. Disease • Pol Umit

E.L. Disease - Each Emp

$1,000,000

Si.OOO.OOO

$1,000,000

Excess Insurance

Midwest Employers Casualty Corj 1/1/2023 '2-00 AM 1/1/2024 12:00 AM
Workers' Compensation

Employer's Uability

Statutory

$1,000,000



Mission Statement

Our mission is to help people become more productive workers, family members and community
citizens. We provide supportive, affordable and effective educational programs, including; adult
basic education, job training and career counseling, education and training for at-risk youth and
child care services.



1

SECOND START

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED
JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021



I

I .

L

INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Independent Auditors Report 1-2

Statements of Financial Position 3

Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets 4-5

Statements of Functional Expenses 6-7

Statements of Cash Flows 8-9

Notes to Financial Statements 10-24

Schedule of Support and Revenues,

Expenses and Changes in Net Assets 2022 25

Schedule of Support and Revenues.

Expenses and Changes in Net Assets 2021 26



- r1  i
7 V •». •'
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To ihc Board of Directors of Second Start

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Second Start (a nonprofit organization),
which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the related
statements of activities and changes in net assets, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Second Start as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the changes in its net assets and
its cash flows for. the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United Stales of America.

Basis for Opinion
Wc conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United Stales
of America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibililies for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. Wc arc required to be
independent of Second Start and to meet our other ethical responsibililies in accordance with the
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence wc have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Management's Responsibilityfor the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United Siate.s of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misslatcmenl, whether due to fraud or
error.

L.

in preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there arc conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, thai raise substantial doubt about Second Start's ability to
continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to
be issued.

L

Auditor's Responsibilitiesfor the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatenicnt, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report thai
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards will always detect a material misstalemcnt when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misslatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgeiy, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misslatements, including omissions, arc considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the Judgment made by a reasonable user based
on the financial statements.

L
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•  Identify and assess the risks of material missiaiemeni of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the nnancial statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that arc appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Second Start's intcmal control. Accordingly, no such opinion
is expressed.

•  Evaliiaie the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, inourjudgment.ihcrcare conditions or events,considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about Second Start's ability to continue as a going conccm for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and liming of the audit, significaul audit findings, and certain intcmal control related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Report on Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.
The schedules of support and revenues, expenses and changes in net assets are presented for purposes
of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The infonnation has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied In the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial staicments themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the informniion is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
financial statements as a whole.

Very truly yours,

MASON + RICH PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATION

Certified Public Accountants

Concord, New Hampshire

October 31, 2022



SECOND START
STATEMENH'S OF FINANCIAL POSmON

JUNE 30. 2022 AND 202!

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable

ERC Receivable

Grants Receivable

Prepaid Expenses
Total Current Assets

PROPER TY AND EQ UIPMENT

Propeny and Equipment

Less Accumulated Depreciation
Net Property and Equipment

TOTAL ASSETS

ASSETS

2022 2021

S  1 ,305,094 S  1.184,12!

59,885 42,351

156,439 .

279,985 225,180

10,031 56,013
1,811,434 1,507,665

3,286,524 3,215,629

f 1,840,243) (L750.8591

1.446.28] 1,464,770

S  3.257,715 S  2.972,435

ITABILITTES AND NET ASSETS

L

L.

L

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

Current Poition ofLong-Tcrm Debt
Deferred Revenue - Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) r.oan
Deferred Contributions - CCASP

Other Deferred Revenue

Total Current Liabilities

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Long-Tcrm Debt
Total Long-Term Liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Pan oJ'These Financial SiatemenLi

54,802

215,154

11,032

183,062

82,940

215.832

188,156

477,696 552,663

35,696

35.696

513.392 552,663

2,739,323 2,419,772

5,000 .

2,744,323 2,419,772

S  3,257,715 $  2,972,435

- Page 3
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SECOND START
STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSE'i'S

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

2022

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR

RESTRICTIONS SUPPORT AND REVENUE

2021

Grants from Governmental Agencies S  1.494.985 S  1,345,384
Private Fees 799,227 695,050
Fees from Governmental Agencies 1,130,332 1.027,464
Govemmeni Assistance - COVID-19 Funding 450,226 747,925
Miscellaneous Income (9.213 20,553
Private Grants 6,000 14,000
Contributions of cash and other fmaocial assets 20,021 35,081
Contributions of Qonfmaacial assets 23.900 18,900
United Way 21,328 24,016
Interest Income 753 804

Total Support and Revenue 3.965,985 3,929,177

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRiCTIONS

Satisfaction of Program Restrictions 10,000
Total Net Assets Releasedfrom Restrictions 10,000 -

TOTAL SUPPORT, REVENUE, AND OTHER NET

ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 3,975,985 3,929,177

FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES AND LOSSES

Functional Expenses

Program Services 3,265,573 3,117,878
Management and General 393,59! 395.742
Total Functional Expenses 3,659,164 3,513.620

Other (Income) Expenses

(Gain) Loss on Disposal of Property and Equipment (2,730) 4,610

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES AND LOSSES $  3,656.434 S 3,518,230

Li

1  }

uJ

The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Pan of These Financial Statements
(Continued on next page)
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SECOND START
STATEMnNTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

INCREASE (DECREASE) /N TOTAL NET

ASSETS tV/THOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

CHANGE IN ASSETS tmH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Donor Restricted Support and Revenue

Net Assets Released from Restrictions

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS

WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN TOTAL NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

2022 2021

$  319,551 $  410.947

15,000

(10,000) .

5,000

324,551 410,947

2,419,772 2.008,825

S  2,744,323 $  2,419,772

L

[.

L
The Accompanying^ Notes are an Integral Part of These Financial Staiemenls
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SECOND START

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YE^VR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Program

Services

Marugemcnt

and General Fundraisins Total

Advertising $  2.192 %  100 $ $  2,292

Conference and Meeting 27,174 • 27,174

Depreciation 102,098 30,374 132,472

Bad Debt 2,080 - 2,080

Dues and Membership 14,976 4,488 19,464

Employee Benefits 207.743 33,285 241,028

Information Technology 16,951 6,345 23,296

Instructional Materials 5,603 - 5,603

Insurance 44,294 3,308 47,602

Interest 454 - 454

Miscellaneous 21.667 • 21,667

Occupancy 109,514 27,338 136,852

Office 9.412 7,692 17,104

Payroll Taxes 157.928 15,763 173,691

Professional Fees 263,063 20,512 283,575

Salaries and Wages 2.127,326 239,678 2,367,004

Staff Development 6,544 • -
6,544

Stipends and Discounts 4.081 • - 4.081

Supplies 124.939 4.501 - 129,440

Travel 17.534 207 - 17,741

TotaJ Functional Expenses S  3,265,573 S  393.591 S $  3,659,164

[.

L

L

L,

L
The Accompanying iWoles are an Integral Part of These Financial Siuiemenis
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SECOND START

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2021

Program

Scrxiccs

Management

and GcocrsI Fundrnising Total

Advertising S  2,426 $  196 S  2,622
Conference and Meeting 21,918 . • 21,918
Depreciation 84,025 35,840 • 1 19,865
Bad Debt 1,505 - - 1,505
Dues and Membership 11,400 4,887 - 16,287
Employee Benefits 221,693 27,658 . 249,351
Information Technolog)' 16,931 6,416 23,347
Instructional Materials 7,506 - 7,506
Insurance 42,657 3,884 46,541
Miscellaneous 831 516 1,347
Occupancy 126,122 32,046 158,168

Office 10,037 5.450 15,487
Payroll Taxes 153,345 17,368 170,713
Professional Fees 151,210 19,842 171,052
Salaries and Wages 2,078,519 238,586 2,317,105
Staff Development 6,194 363 6,557
Stipends and Discounts 180 - ISO

Supplies 169,136 2,690 171,826
Travel 12,243 - 12,243

Total Functional Fs^cnses S  3,117,378 S  395.742 S S  3.513,620

L

L

L

L
The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of These Financial Statements

■ Page 7 -
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SECOND START

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPFRA TING A CmTTIES

Increase (Decrease) in Nel Assets

AdjusijncnLs to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to Net

Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities:

Deprcciaiioo Expense

(Cain) Loss on Disposal of Property and Equipment

(Increase) Decrease in Operating Assets;
Accounts Receivable

ERC Receivable

Grants Receivable

Prepaid Expenses

Increase (Decrease) In Operating Liabilities:

Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

Deferred Revenue ♦ Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) Loan
Deferred Revenue - CCASP

Other Deferred Contributions arui Revenue

Total Adjustments

Nti Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROMIjWFSTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from Disposal of Property and Equipment
Purchases of Property and Equipment
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTiymeS

Repayment of Notes Payable

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities

NET LNCREASE (DECREASE) CV

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALEjNTS

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

2022 2021

$  324,551 $ 410.947

132,472 119,865
(2,730) 4,610

(17.534) (3,329)

(156,439) -

(54,805) (115,223)
45,982 (31,882)

(28.138) 76,331

(678) (204)

(188.156) (124.74,1)

183,062 -

(52,039) 47,694

(139,053) (26,879)
185,498 384,068

2,730

(58,168) (73,062)

(55.438) (73.062)

(9,087)

(9,087)

120,973 311,006

1,184,121 873,115

$  1,305,094 S 1,184,121

I..

L
The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Pan of These Financial Statements

(Continued on next page)
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SECOND START
STATEM liNTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

2022 202t
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:
Cash Paid Durmg ihc Year For:
Interest $ 454 $

i\'oncash Investing and Financing Activities:
Assets Acquired by Assumpiion of Debt 55,815
Debt Assumed to Acquire Assets (55,815)

Cash Paid for Property and Equipment Acquired with Debt

The Accompanying Notes are an Integyal Part of These Financial Statements

- Page 9 ■



SECOND START
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

L-.I

Li

L

A I NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

Second SUrt (the "Organization") is a private nonprofil education corporation which has btxn in
existence since 1970. Second Stan is cominiltcd to improving the economic and educational wellbeing
of New Hampshire residents. Its goal is to help people become more productive workers, family
members, and community citizens. Within these opportunities, the Organization offers a variety of
programs, each serving participants in ways that meet their needs.

The programs available at Second Start are as follows:

Special Education - The Special Education Program was established in 1979 and accounts for the
proceeds ofan education program that serves coded special needs students ages 14-21 from local school
districts in the greater Concord area.

Transitional Employment Trdining Program (TET) - The TET Program was established in 1984 and
accounts for proceeds and expenses used to provide a vocationally oriented program designed to
develop personal and social responsibility, workforce readines.s, and provide experiential training and
coursework for adolescents.

Alternative High School - The Alternative High School Program was established in 1976 and accounts
for the proceeds and expenses of an alternative academic program for adolescents previously
unsuccessful in public high school programs. Students arc not coded for special education services.

Student Assistance Program (SAP) - The Student Assistance Program is a drug education, prevention,
and early identification program designed for public school students. The Student Assistance Program
was started in 1984 and accounts for the proceeds and expenses associated with the student assistance
services for the local school districts as well as programs for the Second Start Alternative High School
and special education students.

Adult Education and Literacy (AEL) - The Adult Education and Literacy Program Includes both Adult
Basic Education (ABE) and Adult Learner Services (ALS). The ABE Program was cstabli.shcd in 1971
and accounts for the proceeds and expenses for providing remedial academic programs for adults from
the most basic levels through preparation for the High School Equivalency Exam (HiSET) as well as
English as a second language classes. The program also includes academic and vocational counseling
for students. The program includes fees and expenses for providing HiSET Testing services and
administering staff development for ABP/ESL teachers statewide. The ALS Program was established
in 1983 and accounts for proceeds and expenses used to help adults increase their reading and math
skills through the aid of volunteer tutors. This program also includes services to foreign-speaking and
refugee students to increase their English skills. Under this program, the Organization also must
con^ly with the regulations outlined in the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act.

(Coniinucd on next pag,t:)
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SECOND START
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

L

L.

L

Day Care Program - The Day Care Prograjii was established in 1973 and accounts for proceeds and
expenses used to carc for children (ages 6 weeks to 12 years) of (lie general community while ihcir
parents arc in classes, training programs, or working during the day. This program also includes services
to protective custody referrals from the New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services.

Welcoming Concord - The Welcoming Concord program was established in 2015 and accounts for
proceeds and expenses used to increase social inclusion and integration of immigrants and refugees in
targeted New Hampshire communities.

B I SUMMARY Of SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This summary of significant accounting policies of the Organization is presented to assist in
understanding these financial statements. The financial statements and notes are the rcprcscniations of
the Organization's management who is responsible for their integrity and objectivity. These accounting
policies conform to generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in the United States of America
and have bcai consistently applied in the preparation of tJie financial statements.

Basis ofAccounting
The Organization uses the accrual basis of accounting in its financial statements. Under this basis,
revenue is recognized when earned rather than when payment is received, and expenses and purchases
of assets are recognized when the obligation, is incurred rather than when the cash is disburs^.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements and related disclosures in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United Slates requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect certain amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results
experienced by the Organization may differ from management's estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash includes cash on hand, funds on deposit with financial
institutions, and investments with original maturities of three montKs or less.

Contract Assets and Liabilities

Accounts Receivable - Trade

Accounts receivable consists of private fees due from the daycarc program and revenue from school
districts for various programs. Accounts receivable arc slated at the amount management expects to
collect from outstanding balances. Management considers accounts delinquent based on the date of
unpaid invoices. Past due receivables are written off at management's discretion using the direct write
off method; this is not considered a departure from accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States because the effects of the direct write ofT method approximate those of the allowance
method. All accounts are considered to be collectible. 'Ilic Organization does not accrue interest on past
due accounts receivable.

(Continued on next page)
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SECOND START
NOTES TO FTNANCIAL STATHMEN*I S

L.

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue represents payments received from customers prior to the satisfaction of the
corresponding performance obligations. Revenue is recognized once the corresponding performance
obligations are satisfied based on the contract with the customer.

Grants Receivable

Grants receivable are amounts due for reimbursement from various grant agencies. No allowance is
recorded because ail amounts are expected to be fully reimbursed by the federal and state govcmmcnis.
Interest is not allowed and is not accrued on any past due grants receivable balances.

UncondUionai Pledges Receivable
Unconditional promises to give are staled at the amount management expects to collect from
ouisianding balances. Management evaluates the collectabiliiy of customer accounts by considering
factors such as historical experience, the age of the promise to give, and current economic conditions
that may affect a customer's ability to pay. Past due promises to give are written off at management's
discretion using the direct write off method; this is not considered a departure from accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States because the effects of the direct write off method
approximate those of the allowance method. The Organization docs not charge interest on past due
promises to give.

Property and Equipment
The Orgamzation's property and equipment policy is to capitalize individual purchases, renewals and
betterments in excess of $1,000. Maintenance, repairs and minor renewals arc charged to expense as
incurred. Periodically, management evaluates property and equipment for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such assets may not be recoverable.
When items of property and equipment arc sold or retired, the related cost and accumulated depreciation
are removed from the accounts and any gain or loss is included in the statement of income. These item.<5
arc depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as follows;

Furniture and Equipment 5 years
Leasehold Improvements 5 .30 years
Building 40 years

Net Assets

The Organization reports its net assets as required by Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASH)
Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-14, Not-for-Frofii Entities (Topic 958): Presentation of
Financial Slalements of Not-for-Profii Entities. Under ASU 2016-14. the Organization is required to
rqjort information regarding its financial position and activities accounting to the following classes:
net assets without donor restrictions and net assets with donor restrictions. Descriptions of the net asset
categories included in the Organization's financial statements arc as follows:

Net assets without donor restrictions include revenues and expenses and contributions which
are not subject to any donor imposed restrictions. Net assets without donor restrictions can be
designated by the Board of Directors for special projects and expenditures.

(Continued on next page)
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SECOND START
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I  .

L.

Net assets with donor restrictions include contributions for which lime restrictions or donor-

imposed restrictions have not yet been met. \Viicn a restriction expires, net assets with donor
restrictions are rcclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statement
of activities as net assets released from resiriaion. Net assets with donor restrictions also

include gifts which require, by donor restriction, that the corpus be invested in perpetuity and
only the income or portion therefore (excluding gains restricted by stale statute) be made
available for program operations in accordance with donor restrictions.

Contributions and Promises to Give

Contributions are recognized under FASB ASU 2018-08, Not-For-Profn Entities (Topic 958):
Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions
Made. Under this ASU, contributions are not recognized as revenue if there arc donor-imposed
conditions and barriers that must be overcome before the Organization is entitled to the assets
transferred. Conditional contributions can exist if the Organization has limited discretion over how the
resources are spent and the contributor retains a right of return to the resources provided if the
conditions are not met. If contributions are received prior to the satisfaction of the donor-imposed
conditions and barriers, the advanced receipt of funds would be recorded as deferred revenue on the
statement of financial position. Once conditions have been substantially met, the contributions are
recognized as revenue and classified as net assets with or without donor restrictions depending on
remaining donor restrictions.

Deferred contributions were $183,062 for the year ended June 30, 2021. 'ITicre were no deferred
contributions for the year ended June 30. 2022. Deferred revenue from exchange U^nsactions was
$13,646 and $65,735 for the years ended June 30.2022 and 2021, respectively.

Revenue Recognition Policy
The Organization recognizes revenue under FASB Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 606,
Revenue from Contracts with Customers, from its First Start Children's Center, adolescent services,
adult education services, and New American Driving School.

All of the Organization's contracts arc one year or less. A description of relevant contracts is below.

The First Start Children's Center provides chiidcare services for early education, preschool, and
elementary age students from the greater Concord area in a ftill-service chiidcare center. Revenue
generated from chiidcare services is primarily comprised of direct weekly tuition pa>'menls from
parents and fees subsidized by the State of New Hampshire. Revenue from chiidcare services are
considered one performance obligation although services provided to the students may include a variety
of academic and extracurricular activities that cater to the needs of the students.

(Cominued on next page)
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SECOND START
NOTES TO FrNANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Daycare revenue is recognized over time as long as the student Is enrolied In the program. Tuition is
billed on a weekly basis and the Organization has an enforceable ri^^t to payment until the lime the
student provides notice of cancellation even if the child is absent due to personal lime or sickness.
Childcare services can be cancelled at any lime; however, the customer is responsible for the tuition
and/or expenses incurred by the Organization prior to cancellation. Refundable deposits are collected
prior to enrollment in order to hold a child's place in the program and are included in deferred revenue
on the statement of financial position. Revenue is recognized from deposits if the child has an
outstanding balance upon leaving the program or if the family docs not notify the Organization of
cancellation of enrollment within two weeks from the preferred start date. Overall, there is no
significant impact from deposits to the financial statements. Sibling discotmts of 10% of the lower
tuition is ofTcred to families; however, the discount cannot be applied to any additional fees such as late
fees. In addition, staff can receive an additional 15% discount, adjusted after any sibling discount
received. There is no significant impact from discounts to the financial statements as they arc
recognized weekly and are not dependent on past or future services.

The Organization provides educational programs to adolescent students through their Alternative High
School (AHS), Transitional Employment and Training programs (TET), and Student Assistance
Programs (SAPs). Services tor the AlIS, TET, and SAP programs are offered to students through the
Organization's on-sitc classrooms and through off-site SAP instructional programs administered at
local school districts in the greater Concord area. The Department of Education sets a fixed fee rate for
special education, which is part of the AHS program. Revenue from adolescent programs is considered
a single performance obligation although services provided to the students may include a variety of
academic, extracurricular, and counseling activities that cater to the needs of the students. The
Organization has a contract with a local school district to provide on-siic AHS, TET, and SAP services
to a set number of students that is renewed for every academic year. The fees to provide these services
are established prior to the school year are paid to the Organization bi-annually. The Organization can
also proridc these services under contracts with local school districts whereby tuition is based on the
number of students enrolled. Revenue for these semces is billed and consumed within the
Organization's fiscal year.

Additionally, the Organization has contracts with local school districts to provide off-site SAPs during
a specific number of schools during the academic year. The fees to provide these services arc
established prior to the school year and arc paid to the Organization on a monthly basis as services are
provided.

The Organization provides educational programs to adult students through their High School
Equivalency Test (HiSET) preparation, Adult Diploma programs, English as a Second Language
classes, and Adult Learner Services that provide tutoring and onc-on-onc assistance to New Hampshire
residents. These programs are offered to student through the Organization's on-sitc or virtual
classrooms. Revenue from adult programs is considered a single performance obligation although
services provided to the students may include a variety of academic and instructional activities that
cater to the needs of the students. Revenue is recognized over lime forihese sef\'iccs.

(Co/ilinued on ncxl pagej
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SECOND START
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Organization is also a lest administration center for students to test for their MiSET administered
by the Educational Testing Service (ETS). Tests arc scheduled over the course of two days and
appointments rnxl exam fees arc administered by ETS. HiSET testing is considered a single obligation
as the Organization is only responsible for administering the test to participants. Revenue from HiSET
testing is recognized at the point in time and is received once the participant has completed the test.

The Organization provides driver education classes to New American adults through an eight week
course that includes classroom instruction and in-car driving observation. The cost of the course can be

i  paid in full at the time of registration or in three equal installments over the course of the instruction.
Services provided through the New American Driving School is considered a single obligation because

i  both classroom and in-car driving observation is required in order to receive a driver's license through
the Stale of New Hampshire. Revenue is recognized over time as the students receive the baicfits of
the program. Overall, revenue received from the New American Driving School is immaterial to the
financial slalemcnLs.

*

i

t

All of the Organization's contracts arc one year or less in length. As a result, costs associated to obtain
I  a contract is recognized as expense in the period incurred. The quoted transaction prices for childcare
[  services and tuition fees do not include variable considerations and there is no allocation of discounts
'  or non-cash considerations. The Organization does not have any significant financing components to

its. contracts. The input method is used for all programs that arc recognized over time based on the
{  number of students enrolled.
I

Functional Allocation ofExpenses

I  The costs of providing the Organization's program and other activities have been summarized on the
1  . functional basis in the statement of functional expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated

among the programs and supporting services benefited. Salaries and related expenses arc allocated to
I  the various program and supporting services based on actual or estimated time employees spend on
j  each function. The remaining expenses are specifically allocated whenever practical, and depreciation

is allocated based on space utilization. General administrative expenses are allocated to each program
based on the direct expenses incurred for each program or estimated usage based on time spent on each
function of the staff.

Donated Materials and Services

Contributed goods and services arc reported at their fair value if such goods or services create or.
■  enhance non-financial assets, or would have been purchased if not provided by contribution, and for

.ser\'ices which arc provided by individuals possessing specialized skills. A number of volunteers have
made contributions of their time and talent, or contributed goods to develop the Organization's

^  • programs. However, these services do not meet the criteria for recognition as contributed services and,
therefore, arc not reflected in the financial statements.

Contributed property and equipment is recorded at fair value at the date of donation. If donors stipulate
how long the assets must be used, the contributions arc recorded as restricted support. In the absence

j  of such stipulation, contributions of property and equipment are recorded as unreslriacd support. The
Organization received no contributed property for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021.

I.,.
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Advertising
The Organization conducts non-dircct response advertising. These costs are expensed as incurred.
Advertising costs were $2,292 and $2,622 for the years ended June 30. 2022 and 202 i. respectively.

Income Taxes

Management evaluates its tax position in accordance with FASB Accounting Standards Codification
(ASC) 740-10, Accounting for Uncertain Tax Positions, which prescribes a recognition threshold and
measurement attribute for financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or

!  expected to be taken in a tax return and also provides guidance on various related matters such as de-
i  recognition, interest, penalties, and disclosures required. The Organization's policy is to recognize

interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits as tax expense.

C I ADOPTION OF NEW ACCOUN'i LNG STANDARD

In May.2014. FASB established ASC Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. ASC 606
and all subsequently issued clarifying ASUs replaced most e.xisting revenue recognition guidance in

j  G.AAP. 'l*hc ASC also required expanded disclosures related to the nature, amount, time, and
,  uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with customers. The Organization adopted

the new standard effective July 1, 2020, using the modified retrospective approach.

As pan of the adoption of ASC 606, the Organization elected the following transitional practical
expedients: (i) to reflect the aggregate of all contract modifications that occurred prior to the date of
initial application when identifying satisfied and unsatisfied performance obligations, determining the
transaction price, and allocating the transaction price; and (ii) to apply the standard only to contracts
that are not completed at the initial date of application. Because contract modifications are minimal,
there is not a significant impact as a result of electing these practical expedients.

Management has assessed the impact of ASC 606 and has deiermined that ASC 606 would have no
material impact in the timing or measurement of revenues based upon guidance. As a result, there were
no material effects on the Organization's financial statements in the year of implementation.

D I GOVERNMENT GRAN1S AND RELIEF

Paycheck Protection Program (PPP)
On February 25, 2021, the Organization received loan proceeds (the second draw) in the amount of

f  $490,310 for the year ended June 30,2021, under the Paycheck Protection Program C'PPP"). The PPP,
'  established as part of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (''CARES Act"),

^  provides for loans to qualifying businesses up to 2.5 times the average monthly payroll expenses of the
I  qualifying business. The entire principal amount and any accrued interest on the loan is eligible for
^  forgiveness to the extent the proceeds were used for eligible purposes, including payroll, employee

benefits, and other eligible payments. Additionally, the Organization was required to maintain certain
payroll levels and employee levels. Amounts not meeting this criteria are considered to be a loan and

l-j require repayment.

i-j

(Continued on next page)
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Management applied for and received the funds with the intent that the funds would be expended in o
manner that would qualify for forgiveness and therefore elected to record the proceeds of the PPP loan
as an in-substancc government grant. Under this method, the PPP loaji is initially recognized as a
deferred income liability. Subsequently, the Organization reduced the liability and recognized gram
income on the statements of activities and changes In net assets as the Organization recognized the
related expenses for which loan forgiveness is allowed. The Organization spent all of the PPP 1
$486,100 proceeds for qualifying expenses and was fully forgiven by the Small Business
Administration (SB A) as of June 30, 2021. The Organization spent all of the PPP 2 $490,310 proceeds
for qualifying expenses and was fully forgiven by the SBA as of June 30^ 2022.

For the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, the Organization spent $188,156 and $615,052 of
qualifying expenses against PPP 1 and PPP 2 loans. The amount of deferred income liability related to
the PPP loans was $188.156 for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Employee Retention Credit (ERC)
The Organization applied for the Employee Retention Credit (ERC) for the year ended June 30, 2022
in the amount of $156,438. The receivable for the ERC is recorded on the Statement of Financial
Position as of June 30,2022.

Other COVlD'l9 Grants

On March 29, 2021, the Organization was approved for a Coronavirus Response and Relief
Supplemental Appropriations Act (CRRSA) grant from the New Hampshire Department of Health and
Human Services totaling $53,200. This grant award is based on qualifying expenses incurred and
income losses incurred for the year ended June 30, 2022. The Organization docs not believe there are
any remaining restrictions or requirements for this grant. All funding was fully expended in the year
ended June 30,2022. As a result, the entire amount, totaling $53,200, was recognized as income for the
year ended June 30, 2022.

On Sepiember 2, 2021, the Organization was approved for the New Hampshire Department of Health
and Human Services Child Care Achieving Stabilization Program (CCASP) grant in the amount of
$233,229 (including incentive add-ons). This funding was received from the American Rescue Plan
Act (ARPA) for the state being administered ihrou^i the Federal Administration for Children and
Families, Office of Child Care. This grant award is based on qualifying operating expenses incurred
including at least 25% of expenditures being spent on staff incentives (such as wage increases, staff
bonuses, and added employee benefits). A portion of the grant ($180,797) wa.s recorded as deferred
revenue and was not expended as of June 30, 2022. This award and Its expenditures must comply with
the scope of allowable funds as detailed in the grant agreement.

(Continued on next pagcj
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E I ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, CONTRACT ASSETS, AND LIABILITIES
The timing of revenue recognition, billings, and cash collections resulted in billed accounts receivable
and deferred contributions and revenue on the Stalcmcnls of Financial Position. Amounts are billed as
scr\'iccs prop-ess in accordance with agreed-upon contractual terms at monthly periodic intervals.
Generally, billing occurs concurrent to revenue recognition, resulting in no contract assets. However,
sometimes the Organiwlion receives advance deposits from its customers, before revenue is
rccopized, resulting in deferred contributions and revenue (contract liabilities). These advanced
contributions are liquidated when revenue is recognized.

_  2022 2021 S Chanee
Accounts Receivable $ 59,885 S 42,351 $ 17,534
Other Deferred Revenue 13^646 55^735 (52,089)

The Organization expects to collect all of the considcmtion under their contracts. Accounts Receivable
increased by $ 17,534 for the year ended June 30, 2022 due to timing. Other deferred contributions and
revenue decreased by $52,089 mainly due to liming.

F I PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Propeny and equipment consists of the following at June 30:

2022 2021
Building and Improvements $ 1,736,222 $ 1,717,616
leasehold Improvements 1,000,025 965,245

210,000 210,000
Furniture and Equipment 340.277 322 768

Total Property and Equipment 3,286,524 3.215,629
Less Accumulated Depreciation (1.840.2431 (i.750.8591

Net Property and Equipment S 1.446.281 § 1.464.770

Depreciation expense was $132,472 and $1 19,865 for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021,
respectively.

G I LINE OF CREDIT

The Organization maintains a revolving line of credit agreement with a local bank, which provides that
it may borrow up to $600,000 at June 30, 2022 and 2021. The interest rate formula is based at 0.50%
over the Wall Street Journal prime rale, which was 5.25% and 3.75% at June 30, 2022 and 2021,
respectively. The agreement is collateralized by all business assets of the Organization. The
Organization had no outstanding balance as of June 30,2022 and 2021.

(ConiinucJ on next page)
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H I T.ONG-TERM DEBT

The Orgamzaiion's long-term debt consists of the following at June 30:

Installment note payable to NH Health and Education Facilities
Authority, payable in monthly principal and interest
installments of S954, with interest at a rate of 1.00% per annum.

Secured by vehicle.
Total Long-Tcrm Debt

Less Current Portion of Long-Term Debt
Long-Tcrm Debt, Net of Current Portion

2022

46.728

2021

46,728 -

f 11.032) -

S

Maturities of Long-Term Debt are as follows:

For rhe Years Ending December 31, Amount

2024 $  11,143

2025 I 1,255

2026 1 1,368

2027 1.930

Total S  35.696

L-

L

i i DISAGGREGATION OF REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

Tlie following table disaggregates the Organization's revenue based on service line and timing of
satisfaction of pcrfonnancc obligations for the years ended June 30:

Services Transferred at a point in time

High School Equivalent Test (liiSET) - Fees

Service transferred over time

2022

18,360

2021

9,549

Childcare/Daycare services 799,227 695,050

Student Assistance Program (SAP) 216,000 256368

Alternative High School (AHS) 199,501 254,799

Transitional Employment & Training (T.E.T.) 275,174 219,653

High School Equivalent Test (HiSET) 241,21 1 139,820

Welcoming Concord 8,441 12,540

Total Revenue from Contracts with Customers S 1,757,914 S  1,587,779

(Coniinued on next page)
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Various economic factors affect revenues and cash Hows. There is no third-party financing and revenue
and cash flows are generally concurrent. Services occur and transfer to the customer over various
periods of lime, dqjcnding on the program. Revenues and cash flows occur upon completion of the
services.

J I CORPORATE ORGANIZATION

The Organization Is a voluntary organization under Chapter 292 of the New Hampshire Revised
Statutes Annotated and therefore has no capital stock.

K| NET ASSETS

There was $5,000 of net assets with donor restrictions for the year ended June 30, 2022. These funds
arc restricted for use in the Alternative High School program and were not expended by Jutie 30. 2022.
In addition. SIC,000 of net assets with donor restrictions was received for driving education purposes
under the Welcoming Concord program. The full amount was expended and released from restrictions
as of June 30, 2022. There was no net assets with donor restrictions for the year ended June 30. 2021.
Additionally, there were $ 100,067 and $ 100,017 of Board Designated Funds set aside for capital and
other repairs and maintenance projects at June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

L I LEASE AGREEMENTS

The Organization has entered into a long-term lease agreement for property located at 450 North State
Street whereby the Organization has use of the building in return for its upkeep and maintenance. The
Organization operates the AEL and TET programs out of this location. 'ITe improvements were
capitalized with a five to thirty-year depreciable life. Depreciation e.xpcnse was $12,747 and S7.796 for
the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

M I CONTRIBUrEDNONFIN.ANClALASSElS

For the year ended June 30. 2022, contributed nonfinancial assets recognized within the statements of
activities included the following:

June 30, 2022 2021

2  t$.900 s 18.900

s  IS-900 $ 1S.900

The Organization recognized contributed nonfinancial assets within revenue, including contributed
rent. Unless otherwise noted, contributed nonfinancial assets did not have donor-imposed restrictions.

(Continued on next page)
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Contributed rent consists of the FMV leased space from the City of Concord based on a quoted triple
net price per square foot basis, excluding real estate taxes, that was used for its Adult Education and
Literacy program. The Organization has an agreement with the City of Concord to use this building
space until 2028.

N I ESCOME TAXES

The Organization is exempt from federal income tax under Section 501 (a) of the Internal Revenue Code
as an organization described in Section 501 (c)(3). The Organization has also been classified as an entity
that is not a private foundation within the meaning of Section 509(a) and qualifies for deductible
contributions.

For the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, management has evaluated its tax position in accordance
with FASB ASC 740-10 and does not believe they have taken uncertain tax positions, therefore, a
liability for income taxes associated with uncertain tax positions has not been recognized. Additionally,
the Organization did not recognize interest or penalties resulting from tax liabilities associated with
recognizing uncertain tax positions for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021.

The Organization is a non-profit organization; as a result, it files a federal Form 990, Return of
Organization Exempt from Income Tttx, and a New Hampshire Annual Report. In the normal course of
business, the Organization is subject to examination by taxing authorities. With limited exceptions, the
Organization is no longer subject to federal or State of New Hampshire examinations for their federal
Form 990 or New Hampshire Annual Report for the years before 2019.

'  O RETIREMENT PLAN

The OrganiMtion maintains a retirement plan under the Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b) for its
employees through a third party. Eligible participants over twenty-one years of age and working more
than 1,000 hours per year may elect to make a voluntary pre-tax salary deferral each year, not to exceed
the maximum allowed by law. The Organization may contribute to the employee's retirement fund at
the Board's discretion. There were no contributions paid by the Organization for the years ended June
30, 2022 and 2021.

(Coniinued on next page)
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P I LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Organizalion's financial assets available within one year from the statements of financial position
date for general operating expenses are as follows:

2022 202J

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1,305,095 S 1,184,121

Accounts Receivable 216,323 42,351

Grants Receivable 279,985 225,180

Prepaid Expenses 10.031 56.013

Financial assets, at year end 1,811,434 1,507,665

Less those unavailable for general expenditures within

one year due to:

Donor-imposed restrictions (5,000)

Board designated funds f 100.0671 f 100.0171

Financial assets available to meet cash needs for

general expenditures within one year S 1.706.367 S 1.407.648

The Organization has financial assets on hand equal to approximately 6 months of operating expenses,
which totaled $3,659,163 for the year ending June 30, 2022. The Organization has financial assets on
hand equal to approximately 5 months of operating expenses, which totaled $3,514,436 for the year
ending June 30,2021. At times, the Board of Directors may designate a portion of any operating surplus
to its liquidity reserve for future expenditures. At June 30, 2022, there were $100,067 of Board
Designated Funds s« aside for capital and other repairs and maintenance projects. At June 30, 2021,
there was $100,017 of Board Designated Funds set aside for capital and other repairs and maintenance
projects. A significant portion of the Organization's funding is derived from cost reimbursement grants
from federal and state agencies; therefore, the Organization believes its liquid financial assess arc
sufficient to fund unanticipated liquidity needs that may arise. Additionally, the Organization has a line
of credit which allows for borrowings up to $600,000.

Q I COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Energy EJftciency Initiative
In fiscal year 2010, the Organization began an initiative to improve the energy efficiency of both 450
North Stale Street and the 17 Knight Street building in Concord, New Hampshire. The initiative
includes energy improvements, including insulation, new windows, new daycarc ceilings, ventilation
and lighting, boiler replacement, conversion to electronic thermostats, and appliance replacement at an
estimated total cost of $681,265.

(Cominued on next po^)
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Financial support for the energy efficiency initiative included a Community Development Finance
Authority (CDFA) grant of $343,000. Additional funding was obtained from a Community
Development Block Grant (CDBG) in the amount of $313,265 through the City of Concord, New
Hampshire and $15,000 in cash donations. These grants were completed in 2011. Both grants are
restricted to the Organization's energy cfTicicncy initiative. Additionally, in the event the Organization
ceases to use the buildings in providing services to low to moderate income populations, both grants
will require repayment of a portion of the proceeds. This contingency continues through 2020 and 2030
for the CDFA and CDBG grants, respectively.

Grant Comp/iMce
The Organization received funds under various grants. Under the terms of the grants, the Organization
is required to use the funds within a certain period and for purposes specified by governing laws and
regulations. If expenditures were found not to have been made in compliance with laws and regulations,
the Organization might be required to repay the funds.

Contingencies
In fiscal year 2016, the County of Merrimack awarded the Organization a CBDG grant in the amount
of $300,000 to be used for building improvements at the Garrison facility. 'ITie improvements include
roof rqilacement, exterior facade mortar repairs, exterior painting, solar panels, and additional
insulation at its 17 Knight Street, Concord, New Hampshire facility. The grant requires that at least
77% of the persons served by the project be low and moderate income. In the event of default, the grant
may require repayment of the funds already distributed. 'Iltis contingency continues through the year
2036.

R I CONCENTRATIONS

Cash

The Organization maintains cash balances at a local financial institution that, at times, may exceed the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) secured limit of $250,000. At June 30, 2022 and 2021,
the Organization had uninsured balances of Si ,084,105 and $989,501, respectively.

Accounts Receivable

Financial instruments thai potentially subject the Organization to concentrations of credit risk consist
primarily of accounts receivable. The Organization performs ongoing credit evaluations of its
customers, and generally docs not require collateral. Historically, credit losses have not been
significant. Approximately 69% and 88% of the accounts receivables were grants receivable from the
State of New Hampshire for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

(Continued on next page)
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Major Source of Funding
The major source of hinds for the Organization's operations is made available by federal and slate
government grants. The Slate of New Hampshire Department of Education (DOE) provides 25% and
22% of the total support and revenue received for the years ended June 30. 2022 and 2021, respectively.
The State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services (DHFIS) provides 14% and
15% of the total support in revenue received for the years ended June 20,2022 and 2021, respectively.
The Small Business Administration (SBA) Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) provides 16% of the
total support and revenue received for the year ending June 30, 2021. The availability of funding is
contingent upon federal or state authorization for program activity and appropriation of funds.

Major Customers
Tuition and fee revenue from Concord School District, one of Second Stan's major customers,
represented 20% and 19% of the Organization's total support and revenue for the years ended June 30,
2022 and 2021, respectively.

S I COVID-19 CONSIDERATIONS

In March 2020, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of the novel coronavirus
(COVID- 19) as a pandemic which continues to spread throughout the world. UOiile the spread of the
virus has caused business disruptions across the United States, the Organization has not experienced
any significant interruptions to their activities as of the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021. While
there remains considerable uncertainty around the duration of this pandemic, there are no ongoing
concerns with the Organizations ability to continue operations for a period of one year from the date of
these financial statements. Sec government grants and relief (Note D) for details on the funding the
Organization applied for and received in response to COVID-19.

T I RECLASSIFICATIONS

Certain amounts in the 2021 financial statements have been reclassificd to conform to the 2022

presentation. These rcclassifications had no effect on the reported results of previously reported net
assets.

U I SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
]
}
I  I

Management has evaluated subsequent events through October 31, 2022, the date which the financial
j  staicmcnis were available to be issued, and has not evaluated subsequent events aAer that date. The

Organization did not identify any subsequent events that would require disclosure in the financial
.  statements.
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Second Start Board off Directors

Joseph Shoemaker

Matt Nadeau

Ashley Aniskovlch

Frank Lemay

Tom Painchaud

Maha del Mar Acebron

Director of Operatbns
Shaheen & Gordon, P.A.
353 Central Ave., Suite 100
Dover, NH 03820

Principal
Nathan Wechsler & Company
70 Commercial Street, Suite 401
Concord. NH 03301-5031

Manager
Nathan Wechsler & Company
70 Commercial Street, Suite 401

President

Member since 2019

Vice President

Member since 2012

Treasurer

Member since 2020

President

Milestone Engineering & Construction, inc.
1 Horseshoe Pond Lane

PO Box 2279

Member since 2006

Senior VP of Distribution Services

New Hampshire Distributors
65 Regional Drive
PO Box 267

Concord. NH 03302-0267

Member since 2012

Senior Teller

Merrimack County Savings Bank
89 N. Main Street

Concord, NH 03301

Member since 2012



Dodd Grfffith Attorney
GaUagher. Callahan & Gartrell
214 North Main Street

Concord. NH 03301

Member since 2014

Caroline Brown Attorney
Tarbeil & Brodich, PA
45 Centre Street

Concord. NH 03301

Member since 2017

Clement Senga Kigugu Executive Director

Overcomers Support Services
90 Airport Road, Room 25
P.O. Box 2941

Concord. NH 03302

Memt>er since 2019

Betsy Peabody Guidance

Concord High School
170 Warren Street

Concord. NH 03301

Member since 2020

Tammv Wells Loan Servicing Coordinator
NH Community Loan Fund
7 Wall Street

Concord. NH 03301

Member since 2023



William P. Mealey

EDUCATION:

C.A.G.S. School Leadership, Plymouth State University, 2016

M.Ed. Special Education, Rivier College, 2006

B.A. Psychology, University of New Hampshire, 2001

TEACHER CERTIFICATION:

NH Experienced Educator Certificate (EEC); K-12 Principal Certificate (0006)

General Special Education (1900), Special Education Administrator (0003)

Highly Qualified Teacher status (HQT) K-12 Mathematics

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE:

Second Start

Program Director, Alternative High School

Assistant Executive Director

June 2016-present

Timberland Regional School District

Academic Dean- Attendance/Student services

Timberland Regional High School

Teacher Leader, Special Education Department, 2010-2013

GED/HiSET- Option Teacher, 2011-2014

Transition and Alternative Ed Prog Coordinator, 2008-2013

Case Coordinator for Students with LD, 2002-2008

Summer Discovery Director (ESYfor ED students) 2002-2013

Iber Holmes Gove Middle School (Raymond)

July 2013-2016

August 2002-June 2013

August 2001-June 2002

Timberland Regional High School August 19998-June 2000

Harbor Schools and Family Services August 1997-August 1998

REFERENCES:

Available on Request



Ginette Chandler, Ed. D

Work Experience:

7/2018-Present

9/2017-7/2018

Second Start. Concord. NH

Director of Professional Development Services, NH Adult Education

English for New Americans/Southern NH Services, Inc.. Manchester, NH
Adult Learner Services Coordinator

9/2015-9/2017 English for New Americans/Southern NH Services, Inc., Manchester, NH
ESOL Adult Education Instructor

8/2015-6/2017

2015-2016

2015-2016

2014 -2015

Capella University
Graduate Teaching Assistant

Manchester Adult and Community Learning, Manchester, NH
Transition Coordinator/ABE/ESL Supervisor

Derry Adult Education, Derry NH
Adult Continuing Education Instructor
ESOL Adult Education Instructor/ESL Citizenship instructor

Liberty Tax, Derry NH
General Manager
Tax School Instructor

2010-2015

2005-2010

Steward Holy Family Hospital, Methuen, MA
Certified Pharmacy Technician Trainer

Safecor Health, Woburn, MA
Head of Customer Service

Education:

2017

2015

Capella University
Educational Doctorate, Adult Education

Dissertation: Improving ESOL Adult Learner Motivation to Self
Direct Learning Beyond the Classroom

International TEFL & TESOL Training Institute
TEFL/TESOL Certification

2013 Perdue University Global
Master of Arts, Teaching

References available upon request


